# CRESTON ADVISORY BODY MEETING MINUTES July 17, 2024

Location - Creston Community Center - 5110 Swayze St, Creston Creston Advisory Body Contact - CrestonAB@gmail.com Chairperson - Sheila Lyons Chair - Kurt Almond Treasurer - Roy Barba Secretary - rotating duty

- 1) Call to Order Flag Salute at 7:00 pm. See attached Sign In Sheets.
- 2) CAB Recorder for this meeting Jim Wortner.
- 3) Minutes of the previous meeting(s) May 15, 2024 meeting minutes were reviewed and approved at this meeting. June 19, 2024 meeting minutes required additional review reset for August 21, 2024 meeting. All CAB approved minutes are posted at <a href="mailto:crestonadvisorybody.com">crestonadvisorybody.com</a>
- 4) Limited Public and/or CAB Member Comments for Items NOT on the agenda (3 min each) Including Community events and other items of interest.

Roy Barba highlighted the Mid-State Cruizers 33rd Annual Lake Park Car Show for Saturday, August 17, 2024 in Atascadero. The Creston Community is invited to attend and enjoy this annual car show event. See attached for additional event information.

Sheila Lyons noted the Industrial Arts Auction (welding projects) at this year's Mid-State Fair and asked support of the High Schools in the County on this event.

Sheila also updated all attending on the CATCH Fund and local support of the Creston Community Center and the nine local groups/clubs that use this center. Announced were the receipt of two grants for a total of \$8,000 to continue to upgrade the Creston Community Center facilities. An additional grant is pending.

5) Public Safety - Cal Fire, Sheriff, CHP, etc.

Deputy John Mc Kenney announced is retirement from the SLO County Sheriff's Department after over 11 years of service to the Creston Community. The CAB Board recognized Deputy Mc Kenney for his service to our community and will seek additional recognition at the SLO County levels.

Deputy Matthew Barksdale provided an update on calls for service by the Sheriff's Department during the June 22 to July 13, 2024 period. Twelve service calls were executed during this period primarily Disturbing the Peace issues. See attached for additional details and specifics for each service issue. Deputy Barksdale will be the local Creston patrol officer moving forward.

Cal Fire Fireman Austin Laurel highlighted the severe fire hazard weather occurring in the greater Creston area. Recommendation to all Creston area residents is to mow early in the morning BEFORE 10:00 am and DO NOT mow in the evenings. Help Cal Fire help you by clearing brush and debris from your property and buildings at least 100 feet away and mow to 4 inches or shorter. Always have a fire suppressor eg water, shovel, extinguisher accessible. Maintain your property and make sure your home and buildings are fire defendable. 20 Medical, 8 Public Assistance, 5 Fire and 4 Vehicle calls for service were reported in the June/July period.

### 6) Planning Department Update & Project Referrals

Cannabis projects update from Jim Wortner provided the CAB Board and Creston Community with updates on the two active cannabis projects in the greater Creston area. This includes DRC2020-00037 SLOCANN LLC at 10125 Creston Road and DRC2019-00059 Webster Road Associates LLC at 6565 Webster Road. Both cannabis projects are still active in the SLO County Department of Planning and Building (Planning Department). However, the CAB Board is taking action steps to have both withdrawn by the applicant and/or cancelled by the Planning Department due to over 6 months of no current activity by the applicants. See attached for additional information on each cannabis project as well as a summary and reference to the June 18, 2024 SLO County Grand Jury Report on the cannabis industry and updated cannabis ordinance regulations approved by our Board of Supervisors.

The CAB reviewed two upcoming Planning Department projects in our greater Creston area:

### Plan Number: N-SUB2024-00047 / COAL 24-012 - Planner Jessica Macrae

<u>Project Description:</u> Request by Tamara D'Ambrosio & Richard and Robin Koker for a Lot Line adjustment (COAL 24-0012) to adjust the lot lines between two parcels of 7.0 acres and 4.8 acres each. The adjustment will result in two parcels of 6.9 and 4.9 acres each. The project will not result in the creation of any additional parcels. The proposed project is within the Agriculture land use category and is located at 6390 Straw Ridge Road, approximately 1.5 miles west of the community of Creston. The site is in the El Pomar Estrella sub area of the North County planning area. Address: 6375 & 6390 AMARETTO RIDGE RD, PASO ROBLES, CA 93446. APN# 043-021-007 & 043-021-008

This request for a lot line change between two properties is to correct historically recorded errors in the property lot lines. Both property owners are in agreement with the lot line changes. No easements are impacted. The Planning Department supports these changes. CAB Board voted unanimously 7/0 to make these changes. CAB will report this recommendation to the Planning Department. See attached CAB recommendation letter.

### Plan Number: N-DRC2024-00011 229 Creston Conditional Use Permit

<u>Project Description:</u> A request by Verizon Wireless for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the construction and operation of a new 5G wireless broadband communications facility consisting of three sectors with three antennas each, totaling nine panel antennas along with six remote radio units (RRUs) mounted below/adjacent to the antennas. The proposed facility will be designed as a fifty-foot faux water tower with antennas at a tip height to forty eight-feet. All brackets, antennas and RRUs will be screened by the faux water tower. The proposed project is within the Agriculture land use category and is located at 5225 Highway 41 in the El Pomar-Estrella Sub-Area of the North County Planning Area. Address: 5225 HWY 41 E PASO ROBLES, CA 93446 APN# 043-091-075.

Verizon staff from Los Angeles offices were not present at this meeting. Sheila Lyons provided the background information on this project from the May CAB meeting including research done noting that the Creston Community Center site could not be used as the location for any commercial endeavor including this proposed Verizon tower. The Creston Community voiced the need for this Verizon cell phone coverage not just for convenience but for safety/emergency services as well. Cal Fire is in favor of this improvement for better fire communications across our area. The community issue is the placement of the tower and the impact on the adjoining neighbors as well as line of sight views. Options were discussed including: 1) Moving the tower closer to the Cal Fire Station to combine the Verizon tower with the Cal Fire buildings and structures, and 2) Move the location of the Verizon tower within the recommended circle of use from Verizon, but put it further back on the property and closer to the Huer Huero Creek bed and trees to help conceal the structure

The CAB Board recommended not supporting this project at its current location to the Planning Department and for Verizon to take another look at the proposed alternatives, as either would be much less intrusive site. CAB Board voted 5 in favor of recommending denial, 1 opposed, 1 abstained. See attached CAB recommendation letter.

- 7) Fifth District Supervisor Report–Supervisor Debbie Arnold or LA Kathleen Goble No report.
- 8) New Business None
- 9) Unfinished Business Reports by local neighbors and CAB Board members described a noisy rodeo/party with bright lights disturbing the peace occurring off of O'Donovan Road for weeks in later June/July. Complaints were made to the Sheriffs office noted in Deputy Barksdale report above, and to County Code Enforcement. The noise and bright lights stopped in early July.

- 10) Report from the Paso Basin Cooperative Committee (Committee) Murray Powell updated the CAB Board and Creston Community on the water issues impacting North County. Murray highlighted a Paso Basin Cooperative Committee brochure that was mailed to the community in early July. This brochure was intended to improve Community communications and update all on the progress of this committee. Murray outlined the current status including additional studies that the Committee commissioned to study the local water issues again. Limited to no progress has been made in the last six months and the politics involving the Board of Supervisors continues. Murray is constantly monitoring this Committee and will keep CAB and the Creston Community updated at our monthly CAB meetings.
- 11) Committee Reports/Next Steps None.
- 12) Treasurer's Report Roy Barba provided the current CAB budget balance at \$1,821.89 with a pending Post Office Box invoice of \$72.00 yet to be paid.
- 13) Additional Limited Public Comment period –

Creston Community comments were made on the removal of the large old oak tree just off Webster Road/229 in the center of town. The dead tree was removed as a safety hazard.

Suggestion was made to have Heather Marino attend future CAB meetings since she will be our Board of Supervisor starting in March 2025.

- 14) Future meetings and agenda items- Next meeting Aug. 21, 2024
- 15) Adjournment at approximately 8:40 p.m.

Meeting Minutes Submitted to Sheila Lyons, CAB Chair on Friday, August 2, 2024 by Jim Wortner



# The Creston Advisory Body

# Meeting Attendee Sign-In Sheet

ate: 7/17/2024

1845 SEN LEE WORFE GORD SROW GATE RA 570-502-7848  BILL SOLD SEND SISO TO GET DA 818-425-2068  SOZOM BOND SISO TO GET DA 818-425-2068  SOZOM BOND SISO TO GET DA 818-425-2068	DELFE GORD SROW GATE RA
6090 SRON GATE RA 6150 Iron Get AM	SISE IN GOT PA
EMPETON	6190 From C. # DN
KEMPERTON	
KHARETON	
	Кингого



# The Creston Advisory Body

# Meeting Attendee Sign-In Sheet

Date: 7-17-24

Name (Printed)	Address	Phone	E-Mail	
Noveen Wokennow	Noveen McKennon 3406 Kata Creek 805 235-3718	805 235-3718	norsely eix notions con	5
Sammy Kayali	DAMMY KAYALI 6450 STAWRICALRE		skayali@sbcglobal.nd	
Meliose tayale		126-344-1637	11	
Kashy Anderson ton 6 3 have effort agend	6336 wavefortidge Rd	7255-144 (308)	(805) 441-3527 Kulanderson/Domailean	7
ALUSIF NUSHI	2048 U.DE St P150 (805) 888-8124 alush ecatch ARCHIECHURA	H 218-888 (508)	alush ecatch Aecuit	CIULIER
TOM HAWKES	FIGURAL HIB CA, (SIO) 502-FEYE Hawkester Equalition	(3,0) 502-5846	Hawkes 123 CJunica	C
Whild + Robin Koke	6390 STRAW 21DGERD Pass 405-423-669	405-423-6269	Kokerr 6370 (O'Smail. Com	
ARILYNY FEWERSTEIN	MELLYNN FEWERSTEIN 5885 WEDSTEIN COSSEN (805)710-2210		Mrsec 18812317 2317	
		((	4	

# **MID-STATE CRUIZERS**

# INVITES YOU AND YOUR FAMILY TO THE 33<sup>rd</sup> ANNUAL LAKE PARK CAR SHOW SATURDAY, AUGUST 17<sup>th</sup>, 2024



The Mid-State Cruizers of Atascadero would like to invite you to our  $33^{rd}$  Annual Car Show at the Lake Park in Atascadero. The cars will be parked on the grass, under the trees, near the lake. You can enjoy a delicious lunch prepared by one of our many food vendors or bring your own picnic lunch and sit back and enjoy the music provided by our local DJ. You can also shop among our many other vendors for jewelry, car products, memorabilia and much more. We encourage children 15 and under to help pick the "Kids Award Car" for this year. This is a Trophy unique to our Car Show. We will also be conducting a Prize Raffle every half hour and a Big Cash Raffle in the afternoon. Please come join us for the BEST family Car Show you have ever attended. We are looking forward to seeing you there.

SHOW CAR PARKING BEGINS AT 7:30 AM. IF YOU WANT TO PARK WITH FRIENDS, PLEASE ARRIVE TOGETHER. VEHICLES MUST BE IN PLACE BY 10 A.M. AND ALL VEHICLES MUST BE OUT OF THE PARK BY 4 P.M. THE SHOW IS LIMITED TO 200 ENTRIES. ONE EVENT T-SHIRT, DASH PLAQUE AND PHOTO WILL BE PROVIDED TO ALL PRE-ENTRIES. ONLY NON-CLUB MEMBERS WILL BE ALLOWED TO JUDGE. ADDITIONAL T-SHIRTS WILL BE AVAILABLE AT THE SHOW FOR PURCHASE.

### REGISTER ONLINE AT MidstateCruizers.org

### PRE-REGISTRATION IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED!

Please complete the entry form on the reverse side and mail to: Mid-State Cruizers, P.O. Box 1548, Atascadero, CA 93423

For more information contact - Roy Barba - 805-238-3177 / 805-464-7370 or Larry Wilson - 805-423-5218 Visit us at: <a href="mailto:www.midstatecruizers.org">www.midstatecruizers.org</a> or Email: <a href="mailto:midstatecruizers.org">midstatecruizers.org</a> or <a href="mailto:midstatecruizers.org">midst

WE ARE NOT AFFILIATED WITH HOT EL CAMINO NITES PUT ON BY THE CITY OF ATASCADERO

### **CRESTON MEETING**

### CALLS FOR SERVICE JUNE – JULY

### DEPUTY BARKSDALE

6/22 CHECK THE WELFARE LA PANZA RD.

6/28 LOUD MUSIC WEBSTER RD

6/29 DISTURBANCE OF PEACE WEBSTER RD

7/1 FIREWORKS GRAY SQUIRREL

7/2 DISTURBANCE OF PEACE BLUE RD

7/4 AGGRESSIVE DOG TOWARD LIVESTOCK 5000 BLK CALF CANYON HWY

7/8 CORONER CASE SHOOTING STAR

7/10 MENTAL HEALTH CALL ODONOVAN RD

7/10 JUVENILE PROBLEM ODONOVAN RD

7/12 FIRE IRONGATE RD

7/13 CHECK THE WELFARE LA PANZA RD.

7/13 DISTURBANCE OF PEACE WEBSTER RD

## Creston Cannabis Update As of Wednesday July 17, 2024

### **HEADLINE NEWS...**

San Luis Obispo County Grand Jury Report "Growing Pains: The Cannabis Industry in San Luis Obispo County" This report submitted on June 18, 2024 examined how the cannabis industry has developed in San Luis Obispo County where the Board of Supervisors has sole jurisdiction. The Grand Jury focused on retail cannabis, permitting/licensing process, taxes/revenues as well as cannabis grows. Specific reference was made in the report that legal cannabis has not proven to be a financial windfall to the County - as original forecasted. (In fact, it has had a negative impact to the County's General Fund subsidizing the cannabis industry by over \$772,000 from 2021- Q2 2024.) Recommendations were aimed at helping/easing County ordinances favoring the cannabis industry in San Luis Obispo County.

Reference: https://drive.google.com/file/d/ 1NzWWnw9p-8RLCDk1xEMKs8\_TvqREE1tm/view?usp=sharing

SLO County Board of Supervisors Updated the Cannabis Regulations at the July 9, 2024 Board of Supervisors meeting. This Board continues to ease cannabis regulations for County growers/retailers to continue to operate. In June they halted a cannabis business tax increase to 8% - freezing the tax at 6% - despite the continued use of the General Fund to help pay for the cannabis industry. Previously permits required 5 year renewals and quarterly inspections. Now, growers can continue with their current permit if they follow the regulations and pass inspections. No permit renewal required. The Board also extended retail cannabis delivery business hours from 8am to 8 pm, now from 6 am to 10 pm. This Board consistently favors the cannabis industry.

<u>Projects Pending a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) Report and Planning Commission Hearing...</u>

DRC2020-00037/SLOCANN, LLC at 10125 Creston Road "Accepted for Processing" - 33% complete. \$0 fees due.

Current update from the Planning Department July 16... The Planning Department issued a withdrawal notice in early May 2024 to the applicant. Applicant responded on May 7 to the satisfaction of the Planning Department. Security was signed off by the Sheriff's Department and secondary/operational questions were being addressed for the required MND report. Expected "ballpark" completion of the MND is December 2024. Public comments are due 30 days after publication and then this project will move to a Planning Commission Hearing shortly thereafter.

Page 1 of 2

## Creston Cannabis Update As of Wednesday July 17, 2024

DRC2019-00059/Webster Road Associates LLC at 6565 Webster Road "Accepted for Processing" - 33% complete. \$0 fees due.

**Current update...** Active and still advancing project. Waiting on a current update from the Planning Department for specific details.

This is a 58,000+ square foot indoor cannabis cultivation, manufacturing and transportation/distribution project (Think WalMart sized foot print.) It is proposed to be located 1,200 feet from the Creston K-8 School playing field and 400 feet from the Creston Village line.

**Sources:** SLO County Planning and Building Department project lead(s) and their CSS Portal on July 16, 2024.

Chairperson: Sheila Lyons, 805-239-0917, P.O. Box 174 Creston CA 93432, salyons1951@gmail.com

Date: 7/19/24

Sheila Lyons, CAB Area #1 Representative, Creston West, salyons1951@gmail.com

To:

Jessica Macrae, Planner, (805) 788-2714, JMacrae@slo.ca.us Planner, San Luis Obispo Planning & Building Dept.

### **Project Specifics:**

Plan Number:

N-DRC2024-00047 / COAL 24-012

Project Description: Request by Tamara D'Ambrosio & Richard and Robin Koker for a Lot Line adjustment (COAL 24-0012) to adjust the lot lines between two parcels of 7.0 acres and 4.8 acres each. The adjustment will result in two parcels of 6.9 and 4.9 acres each. The project will not result in the creation of any additional parcels. The proposed project is within the Agriculture land use category and is located at 6390 Straw Ridge Road, approximately 1.5 miles west of the community of Creston. The site is in the El Pomar Estrella sub area of the North County planning area.

Address: 6375 & 6390 AMARETTO RIDGE RD, PASO ROBLES, CA 93446

APN# 043-021-007 & 043-021-008

### Dates:

Presented to CAB on July 17, 2024, by Tom Hawes, applicant. Neighbors who are part of the lot line adjustment, Robin and Richard Koker, were also present.

### **Specific Findings:**

CAB received input from both parties affected directly by the lot line adjustment and they are in total agreement that all proposed changes are acceptable. Several neighbors who share the same private road, Amaretto Ridge, were also present and supportive of the proposed changes. Apparently, these changes will correct past errors regarding the recording of property lines.

CAB members asked questions and received answers regarding changes in titles, assessments, road maintenance and easements. There did not appear to be any outstanding issues.

### **Conclusions:**

There does not appear to be any opposition to allowing the lot line adjustment to be approved. A motion was made to recommend approval of this project request.

Final Vote: 7 in favor of recommending approval

Signatures: Area #1 Representative and Chairperson, Sheila Lyons

Area #1 Alternate Jim Wortner

Page 11 of 15

Chairperson: Sheila Lyons, 805-239-0917, P.O. Box 174 Creston CA 93432, salyons1951@gmail.com

From: Date: 7/19/24

Sheila Lyons, CAB Area #1 Representative, Creston West, salyons1951@gmail.com

To: Dominic Dal Porto, Planner, (805) 781-5710, ddalporto@slo.ca.us

Planner, San Luis Obispo Planning & Building Dept.

**Project Specifics:** 

Plan Number: N-DRC2024-00011 229 Creston Conditional Use Permit

Webster Rd/ Highway 229 Conditional Use Permit -

A request by Verizon Wireless for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the construction and operation of a new wireless broadband communications facility consisting of three sectors of three antennas each, totaling nine panel antennas along with six remote radio units (RRUs) mounted below/adjacent to the antennas. The proposed facility will be designed as a fifty-foot faux water tower with antennas at a tip height to forty eight-feet. All brackets, antennas and RRUs will be screened by the faux water tower. The proposed project is within the agriculture land use category and is located at off Webster Rd (5008-4768 address area) (applicant address is 5225 Highway 41) in the El Pomar-Estrella Sub-Area of the North County Planning Area.

**APN# 043-091-075 Address:** 5225 HWY 41 E PASO ROBLES, CA 93446

### Dates:

Presented to CAB on April 17, 2024 and May 15, 2024 by Pete Shubin (Sequoia Deployment Services-Agent for Verizon) Project Manager and Dewayne Bonham (Verizon Wireless) RF Engineer. Revisited by CAB at the July 17<sup>th</sup>, 2024 meeting where a final recommendation was voted on by the CAB members.

The Creston Advisory Body (CAB) has conducted an extensive evaluation of the Verizon Wireless Webster Rd Project, including viewing the site (it is immediately adjacent to the Webster Rd/Highway 229 roadway) and solicitation of community input with emails sent to all neighboring properties for which we had contact information. CAB reviewed this project on April 17, 2024, at which time the Verizon representatives provided a significant amount of technical information on safety, range, proposed size, noise, etc.. At the April CAB meeting it was decided that further information from San Luis Obispo County Counsel's office was necessary to see if further consideration could be given to the use of the Creston Community Center site at 5110 Swayze Ave in Creston, as an alternative location to the Webster Rd/Hwy 229 site. The location of the tower on the Community Center property and the potential revenue it could provide to the Community Center would greatly benefit the community at large. The

Verizon representatives stated that either site would work from their perspective, but they had not heard anything back from SLO County Counsel, one way or the other, since July of 2023 and they were anxious to move forward on the project. As of the May15, 2024 meeting, CAB had received no word from the SLO County Counsel's Office, and requested further inquiry by our District #5 Supervisor, Debbie Arnold. The evaluation of the project by CAB was postponed once more. Although County Counsel never communicated directly with CAB, their message through Supervisor Arnold was that the Community Center site was a "no go" due to deed restrictions on the property. The objective of the CAB's continued and final evaluation on July 17th was to consider the compatibility of the current Verizon proposed project site along Webster Rd with the surrounding area/community. CAB's findings resulting from said evaluation are as follows:

### **Specific Findings:**

CAB received input from many neighbors both prior and during the CAB meetings held to review the project. None of neighbors, or other Creston members of the public, in attendance at the April 17th, May 15<sup>th</sup>, nor the July 17<sup>th</sup> (2024) review of the project, were in favor of the Verizon proposed location on Webster Rd/Highway 229. The number of opposition neighbors increased at each meeting. Additionally, there were multiple members of the Creston community who were not neighbors to the project, that also showed up at the CAB meetings to object to the location once word spread about the proposal. ALL opponents have an issue with the proposed location of the cell tower.

Many residents of Creston expressed their desire to have improved cell service and recognize that for optimal assistance by public safety organizations in the area, additional cell towers in the area could be beneficial. Cal Fire representatives present at the July CAB meeting added their direct knowledge of how their emergency calls have sometimes been dropped when they were out on call in the community. However, everyone was in agreement that the current selected location for the cell tower is wrong for all the following reasons and two alternate locations were proposed that are within the circle on the maps as indicated by Verizon where the tower could be located, on the same landowner's property, and still provide the necessary coverage they require.

- 1. View Sheds Everyone present at all three CAB meetings felt that the size of the proposed "water tank" (48 ft high) cell tower would actually dwarf the surrounding structures (taller than telephone poles in the area). The stretch of Webster Rd. where this tower is being proposed is the main corridor into the small historic town of Creston. Whereas the proposed "water tank" design is preferable to a "tree", or other structures, it would still be a very stark standout, contrasting against the very open agricultural fields in the area. The exact words were "It would be an eyesore." Verizon representatives stated that the tower could not be made any shorter.
  - Additionally, the neighbors immediately in the vicinity felt that it would destroy their bucolic view of the surrounding landscape from their homes.
- Nesting Eagles One neighbor provided photos of a pair of bald eagle's nesting on their property a short distance from the proposed cell tower location. Placement of structures,

such as cell towers is not allowed, per the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service National Bald Eagle Management Guidelines.

See links:

https://www.fws.gov/sites/default/files/documents/national-bald-eagle-management-guidelines 0.pdf

https://www.fws.gov/library/collections/threats-birds

- 3. Noise Verizon stated that there would be a backup diesel generator on the property that would need to be run/tested regularly at specific intervals. These generators are notoriously noisy, and sound carries great distances across the open agricultural fields. Living in agricultural areas residents expect to hear the random generator running occasionally, but this generator would be undesirably close to the neighbors and would be running on a regular basis.
- 4. Ag land The applicant has stated that the land on which the cell tower is being proposed is not being farmed, however, the neighbor has photos of bales of hay harvested from the property sitting in the exact location proposed for the tower.
- Health and Safety issues were allayed by the Verizon consultant RF Engineer who specialized in the health aspects of RF exposure.

### Alternatives:

Two alternates, but adjacent-ish, sites were suggested that were acceptable to the neighbors and all present at the meeting. Both sites are on the same proposed landowner's property but are set back a significant distance from the road, back against foliage that would mitigate some of the concerns of the tower standing out so starkly.

One of the neighbors to the site, met with the Verizon Representatives after the May CAB meeting at the proposed cell tower site and the representatives seemed to agree that the alternate sites being proposed by public present at the CAB meeting could be workable as they were near the proposed site, on the same landowners property, but well back from the road and visually less intrusive. See attached map with alternate sites indicated in orange on the right side of the map.

### Conclusions:

There was much discussion from both CAB members and from the public. Again, Creston residents recognized the proposed benefits of having an additional cell tower in the area would bring. However, the concerns mentioned above were all examples of specific issues and most notably overall community/neighborhood incompatibility if the tower were to be situated at the currently proposed location, along Webster Rd as you drive into the town of Creston. Not just the neighbors, but the Creston community at large feels that this project is not compatible with the neighborhood at its current location.

A motion was made to recommend not supporting this project at its current location and for Verizon Wireless to take another look at the proposed alternatives, as either would be a much less intrusive site.

### Final Vote: 5 in favor of recommending denial, 1 opposed, 1 abstained

**Note:** 5 in favor of denying the project as currently proposed believe one of the two alternate sites being proposed would be acceptable. The 1 opposed vote does not believe Creston needs any additional towers in the area and doesn't feel that Verizon made a good argument for why they are proposing additional towers in Creston. He feels the project proposal is strictly business driven (to attract more customers) and not due to customer complaints or requests for better service.

Signatures:

Area #1 Representative and Chairperson, Sheila Lyons

Shala A Lyns

Area #1 Alternate Jim Wortner

